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an appeal in accordance with 30 CFR 
part 590, subpart A. 

(b) If you file an appeal, you must ei-
ther: 

(1) Submit a surety bond in the 
amount of the penalty to the appro-
priate Leasing Office in the Region 
where the penalty was assessed, fol-
lowing instructions that the Reviewing 
Officer will include in the final deci-
sion; or 

(2) Notify the appropriate Leasing Of-
fice, in the Region where the penalty 
was assessed, that you want your lease- 
specific/area-wide bond on file to be 
used as the bond for the penalty 
amount. 

(c) If you choose the alternative in 
paragraph (b)(2) of this section, the 
BOEM Regional Director may require 
additional security (i.e., security in ex-
cess of your existing bond) to ensure 
sufficient coverage during an appeal. In 
that event, the Regional Director will 
require you to post the supplemental 
bond with the regional office in the 
same manner as under § 556.53(d) 
through (f) of this chapter. If the Re-
gional Director determines the appeal 
should be covered by a lease-specific 
abandonment account then you must 
establish an account that meets the re-
quirements of § 556.56. 

(d) If you do not either pay the pen-
alty or file a timely appeal, BOEM will 
take one or more of the following ac-
tions: 

(1) We will collect the amount you 
were assessed, plus interest, late pay-
ment charges, and other fees as pro-
vided by law, from the date you re-
ceived the Reviewing Officer’s final de-
cision until the date we receive pay-
ment; 

(2) We may initiate additional en-
forcement, including, if appropriate, 
cancellation of the lease, right-of-way, 
license, permit, or approval, or the for-
feiture of a bond under this part; or 

(3) We may bar you from doing fur-
ther business with the Federal Govern-
ment according to Executive Orders 
12549 and 12689, and section 2455 of the 
Federal Acquisition Streamlining Act 
of 1994, 31 U.S.C. 6101. The Department 
of the Interior’s regulations imple-
menting these authorities are found at 
43 CFR part 12, subpart D. 

FEDERAL OIL AND GAS ROYALTY MAN-
AGEMENT ACT CIVIL PENALTIES DEFI-
NITIONS 

§ 550.1450 What definitions apply to 
this subpart? 

The terms used in this subpart have 
the same meaning as in 30 U.S.C. 1702. 

PENALTIES AFTER A PERIOD TO CORRECT 

§ 550.1451 What may BOEM do if I vio-
late a statute, regulation, order, or 
lease term relating to a Federal oil 
and gas lease? 

(a) If we believe that you have not 
followed any requirement of a statute, 
regulation, order, or lease term for any 
Federal oil or gas lease, we may send 
you a Notice of Noncompliance inform-
ing you what the violation is and what 
you need to do to correct it to avoid 
civil penalties under 30 U.S.C. 1719(a) 
and (b). 

(b) We will serve the Notice of Non-
compliance by registered mail or per-
sonal service using the most current 
address on file as maintained by the 
BOEM Leasing Office in your respec-
tive Region. 

§ 550.1452 What if I correct the viola-
tion? 

The matter will be closed if you cor-
rect all of the violations identified in 
the Notice of Noncompliance within 20 
days after you receive the Notice (or 
within a longer time period specified in 
the Notice). 

§ 550.1453 What if I do not correct the 
violation? 

(a) We may send you a Notice of Civil 
Penalty if you do not correct all of the 
violations identified in the Notice of 
Noncompliance within 20 days after 
you receive the Notice of Noncompli-
ance (or within a longer time period 
specified in that Notice). The Notice of 
Civil Penalty will tell you how much 
penalty you must pay. The penalty 
may be up to $500 per day, beginning 
with the date of the Notice of Non-
compliance, for each violation identi-
fied in the Notice of Noncompliance for 
as long as you do not correct the viola-
tions. 

(b) If you do not correct all of the 
violations identified in the Notice of 
Noncompliance within 40 days after 
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you receive the Notice of Noncompli-
ance (or 20 days following the expira-
tion of a longer time period specified in 
that Notice), we may increase the pen-
alty to up to $5,000 per day, beginning 
with the date of the Notice of Non-
compliance, for each violation for as 
long as you do not correct the viola-
tions. 

§ 550.1454 How may I request a hear-
ing on the record on a Notice of 
Noncompliance? 

You may request a hearing on the 
record on a Notice of Noncompliance 
by filing a request within 30 days of the 
date you received the Notice of Non-
compliance with the Hearings Division 
(Departmental), Office of Hearings and 
Appeals, U.S. Department of the Inte-
rior, 801 North Quincy Street, Arling-
ton, Virginia 22203. You may do this re-
gardless of whether you correct the 
violations identified in the Notice of 
Noncompliance. 

§ 550.1455 Does my request for a hear-
ing on the record affect the pen-
alties? 

(a) If you do not correct the viola-
tions identified in the Notice of Non-
compliance, the penalties will continue 
to accrue even if you request a hearing 
on the record. 

(b) You may petition the Hearings 
Division (Departmental) of the Office 
of Hearings and Appeals, to stay the 
accrual of penalties pending the hear-
ing on the record and a decision by the 
Administrative Law Judge under 
§ 550.1472. 

(1) You must file your petition within 
45 calendar days of receiving the Notice 
of Noncompliance. 

(2) To stay the accrual of penalties, 
you must post a bond or other surety 
instrument, or demonstrate financial 
solvency, using the standards and re-
quirements as prescribed in §§ 550.1490 
through 550.1497, for the principal 
amount of any unpaid amounts due 
that are the subject of the Notice of 
Noncompliance, including interest 
thereon, plus the amount of any pen-
alties accrued before the date a stay 
becomes effective. 

(3) The Hearings Division will grant 
or deny the petition under 43 CFR 
4.21(b). 

§ 550.1456 May I request a hearing on 
the record regarding the amount of 
a civil penalty if I did not request a 
hearing on the Notice of Non-
compliance? 

(a) You may request a hearing on the 
record to challenge only the amount of 
a civil penalty when you receive a No-
tice of Civil Penalty, if you did not pre-
viously request a hearing on the record 
under § 550.1454. If you did not request a 
hearing on the record on the Notice of 
Noncompliance under § 550.1454, you 
may not contest your underlying li-
ability for civil penalties. 

(b) You must file your request within 
10 days after you receive the Notice of 
Civil Penalty with the Hearings Divi-
sion (Departmental), Office of Hearings 
and Appeals, U.S. Department of the 
Interior, 801 North Quincy Street, Ar-
lington, Virginia 22203. 

PENALTIES WITHOUT A PERIOD TO 
CORRECT 

§ 550.1460 May I be subject to pen-
alties without prior notice and an 
opportunity to correct? 

The Federal Oil and Gas Royalty 
Management Act sets out several spe-
cific violations for which penalties ac-
crue without an opportunity to first 
correct the violation. 

(a) [Reserved] 
(b) Under 30 U.S.C. 1719(d), you may 

be subject to civil penalties of up to 
$25,000 per day for each day each viola-
tion continues if you: 

(1) Knowingly or willfully prepare, 
maintain, or submit false, inaccurate, 
or misleading reports, notices, affida-
vits, records, data, or other written in-
formation; 

(2)–(3) [Reserved] 

§ 550.1461 How will BOEM inform me 
of violations without a period to 
correct? 

We will inform you of any violation, 
without a period to correct, by issuing 
a Notice of Noncompliance and Civil 
Penalty explaining the violation, how 
to correct it, and the penalty assess-
ment. We will serve the Notice of Non-
compliance and Civil Penalty by reg-
istered mail or personal service using 
your address of record as specified 
under 30 CFR part 1218, subpart H. 
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